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building has a shed roof dormer at the front which may have been added at a later date and a gable
roof dormer at the rear of the main section of the house which could be original. A wood ledger board
below frieze could indicate the past presence of a porch, now gone.

The bricks used for construction of the Doherty/Fitzpatrick house were an unusual size (3"x9"x4.5” or
7.62x22.86x11.43cm), suggesting that they predated industrial-scale brick-making. Most of the house
is construction “common bond” brick; however, the front fagade is laid up in more decorative and
time-consuming “Flemish bond” brick.

The house exhibits several fine architectural details typical of the Neo-Classical style, including a
decorative frieze, eave returns, and gable trim. The farmhouse is further distinguished by six-over-six
double hung windows, flared brick voussoirs, and wood sills. The centred entrance features a six
panelled wooden door, as well as a transom and sidelights, the muntins of which create a diamond
design.

The interior layout confirms the architectural style. The house has a centre hall plan featuring large
principal rooms on each side. The second floor has a central stair hall and four bedrooms, each with
a closet under the slope of the roof. The tail of the house was a summer kitchen with two large rooms
and a partial attic.

When built, the farmhouse was aiso one of only a few brick houses in Toronto Gore Township.
Today, it is one of the oldest surviving brick farmhouses in the area.

Historical/Associative Value:

The historical/associative value of the house relates to its association with the Doherty and Fitzpatrick
families, who were prominent early settlers and pioneers of Toronto Gore Township. In addition to its
connection with these founding Gore families, the Doherty home was a popular meeting place for
locals such as the Dohertys, McVeans, and Fitzpatricks to discuss politics.

According to land records, the property was first owned by the Venerable John Strachan who
received the Crown Patent for all 200 acres of Lot 11, Concession 9 ND, Gore of Toronto, in 1828.
William Campbell bought the lot in 1832. Patrick Doherty arrived in Chinguacousy from Ireland via
Streetsville circa 1833. He and his son Michael bought, respectively, the rear half and the south half
of Lot 11 from Campbell in 1835. Another of Patrick’'s sons, Bernard, bought the north half of Lot 12
and Lot 13, where he built his home. The 1851 Census Return notes that Patrick and Bridget Doherty
and six children lived in a one and-a-half storey brick house located on Lot 11, Concession 9 ND. The
1861 Census Return notes a two storey brick house.

Michael Doherty married Elizabeth Fitzgerald and after his father’s death in 1869, Michael Doherty
inherited the property and lived there with his family and his mother. Elizabeth was the daughter of
early Toronto Gore settlers Peter Fitzgerald and Sarah Peach. Perkins Bull records that Michael
Doherty was considered to be “one of the grand old men of the parish” by the time he passed away
and he was prominent in the affairs of Peel County. He served as Chairman of the Toronto Gore
Board of Health in the late 1880s and was a Liberal supporter. He also served as a Township



Councillor in 1877-78, 1879 and 1880, Reeve of Toronto Gore in 1885, 1886 and 1887, and as a
Member of the Peel County Council.

After Michael passed away, his son Charles P. Doherty and others inherited Lot 11 and the house in
1914. it was in 1949 that a relative, Wilfrid Fitzpatrick, bought the lot from Charles, although Charles
continued to live there until his death in 1963. Members of the Fitzpatrick family continued to live on
the property into the 1980s. Altogether, the Doherty and Fitzpatrick families owned the property for
over one hundred years.

Contextual Value:

The property also has contextual value as one of the last surviving vestiges of the historic hamlet of
Castlemore and as a landmark at the intersection of Castlemore Road and The Gore Road. The
Castlemore community emerged in 1834 after the building of an inn along The Gore Road. Several
small dwellings appeared north of the inn in the years after, followed by a general store in 1842. By
1949, the hamlet contained a blacksmith shop, wagon shop, several frame homes, and a lumber mill.
It was named “Castlemore” by a local Irishman after his hometown.

DESCRIPTION OF HERITAGE ATTRIBUTES

The heritage attributes comprise all fagades, architectural detailing, construction materials and
associated building techniques, as well as significant landscape elements and important vistas. The
detailed heritage attributes/character defining elements include, but are not limited to:

Design/Physical Value:

+ Neo-Classical architecture

» Centre hall plan

e Cut stone foundation

» Side gable roof

» Symmetrical side-gable chimneys

e Decorative dentil wood frieze

« Eave returns on all gables and gable trim

« Flemish bond on front fagade, three wythes thick, and common bond construction with 6" course
headers on the remaining facades

+ Well-maintained masonry construction

s 6-over-6 double hung wood windows

+ Flared brick voussoirs

» Wood window sills

¢ Central entranceway with sidelights and transom with elegant tracery

« Centred 7-panelled wooden door

e Extant interior detail and trim and woodwork

¢ Elegant stair with carved handrail with a winding newel

o Baluster with alternating square and turned wood pickets

* Fireplaces and their respective mantels








